
 
 

JANUARY 11, 2017 
MITCHELL ROOM 

3:30 P.M. Closed Session; 4:30 P.M. Regular Session 
201 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 

 

 MAYOR Sam Abed 

 DEPUTY MAYOR John Masson 

 COUNCIL MEMBERS Olga Diaz 
  Ed Gallo 
  Michael Morasco 

 CITY MANAGER Graham Mitchell 

 CITY CLERK Diane Halverson 

 CITY ATTORNEY Jeffrey Epp 

 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Bill Martin 

 DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING SERVICES Julie Procopio 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ELECTRONIC MEDIA: 
Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be submitted 
to the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the Council meeting at which it is to be shown.   
 
The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system.  The media 
must be labeled with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact 
information for the person presenting the media.   
 
The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers.  
City staff will queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak.  Materials shown to 
the Council during the meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the Clerk.   
 
The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content 
of electronic media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable 
to live presentations. 



 

January 11, 2017 
3:30 P.M. Meeting 

 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Gallo, Masson, Morasco, Abed 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

In addition to speaking during particular agenda items, the public may address the Council on any item which 
is not on the agenda provided the item is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council.  State law 

prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such items, but the matter may be referred to the City 
Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please refer to the back page of the agenda for 

instructions.) Speakers are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications. 

CLOSED SESSION:  (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

I. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54957.6) 
a. Agency Negotiator:  Sheryl Bennett   and Graham Mitchell 

Employee Organization: Escondido Police Officers' Association 

II. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-- EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code 
54956.9(d)(1)) 

Case Name:   Nicolas Dapice v. City of Escondido 
Case No:   WCAB Case No. ADJ6914844 

III. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54956.8) 
a. Property:   A parcel on the north side of West Valley Parkway between 

    City hall and the California Center for the Arts, Escondido; 
    APN 229-372-20 
City Negotiator:  The City of Escondido 
Negotiating Parties:  Craig Clark 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Agreement 

  



b. Property:  272 East Via Rancho Parkway 
City Negotiator: The City of Escondido 
Negotiating Parties: Westfield 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Agreement 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 



 

January 11, 2017 
4:30 P.M. Meeting 

 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION:  
City Council agendas allow an opportunity for a moment of silence and reflection at the beginning of the evening meeting.  
The City does not participate in the selection of speakers for this portion of the agenda, and does not endorse or sanction 
any remarks made by individuals during this time.  If you wish to be recognized during this portion of the agenda, please 
notify the City Clerk in advance.   

 
FLAG SALUTE   

 
ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Gallo, Masson, Morasco, Abed 

 

 
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 

items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please 
refer to the back page of the agenda for instructions.) NOTE:  Depending on the number of requests, comments 

may be reduced to less than 3 minutes per speaker and limited to a total of 15 minutes. Any remaining speakers 

will be heard during Oral Communications at the end of the meeting.   



CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

Items on the Consent Calendar are not discussed individually and are approved in a single motion.  However, 
Council members always have the option to have an item considered separately, either on their own request 

or at the request of staff or a member of the public. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 

AGENCY/RRB) 
2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council/Successor Agency ) 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A) Regular Meeting of September 14, 2016  B) Regular Meeting 
of December 7, 2016  C) Special Meeting of December 14, 2016 

4. APPROVAL OF CALPERS INDUSTRIAL DISABILITY RETIREMENT FOR BEVERLY HOLTZ - 

Request the City Council approve the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) 
Industrial Disability Retirement for Police Officer Beverly Holtz. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-01 

5. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO AND THE 

POLICE OFFICERS' ASSOCIATION - NON-SWORN BARGAINING UNIT AND BUDGET 

ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council approve the execution of a Memorandum of Understanding between the City 

of Escondido and the Police Officers' Association Non-Sworn Bargaining Unit, for a one-year term 
commencing July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 and approve a budget adjustment appropriating 

$56,055 to cover increased contract costs. The Fiscal Year 2016-17 General Fund Operating Budget 

did not allocate funds for contract increases, but it is anticipated that budgetary savings at year end 
will cover these increased costs.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-09 

6. FINAL MAP, ESCONDIDO TRACT 877, LOCATED AT 1995 BERNARDO AVENUE - 

Request the City Council approve the Final Map for Tract 877, a 13-Lot Residential Subdivision located 

at 1995 Bernardo Avenue. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio) 

7. REJECT ALL BIDS FOR THE JIM STONE POOL RENOVATION PROJECT - 

Request the City Council approve rejecting all bids for the Jim Stone Pool Renovation Project and 

authorize staff to re-bid the project. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-08 

 

CONSENT – RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/Successor 
Agency/RRB at a previous City Council/Successor Agency/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting.  (The title of 

Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 



PUBLIC HEARINGS 

8. TWO ALTERNATIVE MASTER AND PRECISE DEVELOPMENT PLANS AND ZONE CHANGE FOR 

A PROPOSED INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AT 1925 HARMONY GROVE ROAD (PHG 16-0012 

AND ENV 16-0008) - 
Request the City Council approve two alternative Master and Precise Development Plans and a Zone 

Change from R-1-7 (Single-Family Residential) to PD-I (Planned Development-Industrial) for a 

proposed industrial development on Harmony Grove Road, south of Enterprise Street, east of Pacific 
Oaks Place (APN 235-050-58). The two alternative plans are mutually exclusive. Master and Precise 

Development Plan A would consist of one 98,500 square-foot industrial building, and Master and Precise 
Development Plan B would consist of three industrial buildings and 86,010 total square feet. The 

proposal also includes the adoption of the environmental determination prepared for the project. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-02 (First Reading and Introduction) 

9. APPEAL OF PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION TO APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE 

PERMIT FOR A MEMBRANE FILTRATION/REVERSE OSMOSIS FACILITY (MF/RO) LOCATED 
AT 1201 EAST WASHINGTON AVENUE (PHG 16-0014) - 

Request the City Council affirm the Planning Commission's approval of a Conditional Use Permit for the 
development of a Membrane Filtration/Reverse Osmosis facility (MF/RO) located at 1201 East 

Washington Avenue. 

Staff Recommendation: Deny the appeal and affirm the decision of the Planning Commission 
(Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-07 

 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

10. APPOINTMENT TO PLANNING COMMISSION - 
Request the City Council ratify the Mayor's appointments to the Planning Commission. 

Staff Recommendation: Ratify Appointments (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

11. REVIEW AND UPDATE OF CURRENT COUNCIL SUBCOMMITTEE AND MEMBER 

ASSIGNMENTS - 
Request the City Council make determinations and ratify members to serve on the Council/Mayoral 

appointed subcommittees per the attached listing. 

Staff Recommendation: None  

 

  



FUTURE AGENDA 

12. FUTURE AGENDA - 

The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 

Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 

announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS' SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

CITY MANAGER’S UPDATE/BRIEFING 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 

Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. 

 CITY MANAGER'S UPATE - 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 

items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers 

are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications.  

ADJOURNMENT 

 

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 
Date Day Time Meeting Type Location 

January 18 - - No Meeting - 

January 25 Wednesday 3:30 & 4:30 PM Regular Meeting  Council Chambers 

February 1 Wednesday 3:30 & 4:30 PM Regular Meeting  Council Chambers 

February 8 - - No Meeting - 



TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL 
 

The public may address the City Council on any agenda item. Please complete a Speaker’s form and give it to 

the City Clerk.  Submission of Speaker forms prior to the discussion of an item is highly encouraged.  Comments 
are generally limited to 3 minutes. 
 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under “Oral Communications.”  

Please complete a Speaker’s form as noted above. 
 

Nomination forms for Community Awards are available at the Escondido City Clerk’s Office or at 
http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx 
 

Handouts for the City Council should be given to the City Clerk.  To address the Council, use the podium in the 

center of the Chambers, STATE YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD and speak directly into the microphone. 
 

AGENDA, STAFF REPORTS AND BACK-UP MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE: 
 

• Online at http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx 
• In the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall  

• In the Library (239 S. Kalmia) during regular business hours and  
• Placed in the Council Chambers (See: City Clerk/Minutes Clerk) immediately before and during the 

Council meeting. 
 

AVAILABILITY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS AFTER AGENDA POSTING:  Any supplemental writings 
or documents provided to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 

inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council 

Chambers while the meeting is in session. 
 

LIVE BROADCAST 
 

Council meetings are broadcast live on Cox Cable Channel 19 and U-verse Channel 99 – Escondido Gov TV.  
They can also be viewed the following Sunday and Monday evenings at 6:00 p.m. on those same channels.  

The Council meetings are also available live via the Internet by accessing the City’s website at 
www.escondido.org, and clicking the “Live Streaming –City Council Meeting now in progress” button on the 

home page. 
 

Please turn off all cellular phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 
 

The City Council is scheduled to meet the first four Wednesdays 
of the month at 3:30 in Closed Session and 4:30 in Open Session. 

(Verify schedule with City Clerk’s Office) 
Members of the Council also sit as the Successor Agency to the CDC, Escondido Joint Powers 

Financing Authority and the Mobilehome Rent Review Board. 
 

CITY HALL HOURS OF OPERATION 

Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 

 

 
If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact our ADA Coordinator at 

839-4643.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 

Listening devices are available for the hearing impaired – please see the City Clerk. 

 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx
http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx
file:///C:/Users/RVAQuestys/Downloads/www.escondido.org


Agenda Item No.: 3 
Date: January 11, 2016 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

September 14, 2016 
3:30 P.M. Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 3:30 p.m. on Wednesday, September 
14, 2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

ATTENDANCE: 
The following members were present: Councilmember Olga Diaz, Councilmember Ed Gallo, Councilmember 
John Masson, Deputy Mayor Michael Morasco, and Mayor Sam Abed. Quorum present. 

CLOSED SESSION: (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/ RRB) 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Diaz and seconded by Councilmember Gallo to recess to Closed Session. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54957.6) 
a. Agency Negotiator: Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 

Employee Organization: Escondido City Employee Association: 
Administrative/Clerical/Engineering Bargaining Unit 

b. Agency Negotiator: Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 
Employee Organization: Escondido City Employee Association: Supervisory 

Bargaining Unit 
c. Agency Negotiator: Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 

Employee Organization: Non-Sworn Police Bargaining Unit 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-- EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code 
54956.9(d)(1)) 

Case Name: Arthur Holcomb v. City of Escondido 
Case No: WCAB No. ADJ9254525 

September 14, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 556 



ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 3:47 p.m. 

MAYOR CITY CLERK 

MINUTES CLERK 

September 14, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 557 



CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

September 14, 2016 
4:30 P.M. Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 
Mobilehome Rent Review Board 

     

     

CALL TO ORDER 

   

     

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 4:35 p.m. on Wednesday, September 
14, 2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION: 
Scott Smith led the Moment of Reflection. 

FLAG SALUTE 
Mayor Abed led the Flag Salute. 

PROCLAMATIONS: 
National Preparedness Month 

PRESENTATIONS: 
Citrus Pest & Disease Prevention Program Presentation 

ATTENDANCE: 
The following members were present: Councilnnember Olga Diaz, Councilmennber Ed Gallo, Councilmember 
John Masson, Deputy Mayor Michael Morasco, and Mayor Sam Abed. 

Also present were: Graham Mitchell, City Manager; Jeffrey Epp, City Attorney; Bill Martin, Director of 
Community Development; Ed Domingue, Director of Public Works; Diane Halverson, City Clerk; and Michael 
Thorne, Minutes Clerk. 

Tom Cowan, Escondido, thanked the City for its support of the North County StandDown. 

Tracy Baxter, Escondido, spoke about homelessness in the City. 

Jerry Swadley, Escondido, spoke about the Escondido Country Club and stated he does not support the 
new development proposal from New Urban West. 

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 558 September 14, 2016 



CONSENT CALENDAR 

Councilmember Masson removed item 15 from the Consent Calendar for discussion. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Masson and seconded by Deputy Mayor Morasco to approve the following 
Consent Calendar items, with the exception of item 15. Motion carried unanimously. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY/RRB) 

2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council/Successor Agency) 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None Scheduled 

4. APPOINTMENT TO THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY BOARD - 
Request the City Council ratify the Mayor's appointment of a City Councilmember as representative on 
the Board of the San Diego County Water Authority. (File No. 0145-80) 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Council: Mayor Sam Abed) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-133 

5. FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 ROTARY CLUB OF ESCONDIDO GRANT AND BUDGET 
ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Library Department to accept the Rotary Club of 
Escondido Grant in the amount of $1500 and approve the budget adjustment needed to spend the 
grant funds. (File No. 0430-80) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Services Department: Loretta McKinney) 

6. UNCLASSIFIED SERVICE SCHEDULE AND SALARY PLANS - 
Request the City Council approve the adoption of two Resolutions pertaining to Unclassified Employees: 
amending the Unclassified Management Salary Bands and amending the Unclassified Service Schedule 
List. (File No. 0720-20) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

A) RESOLUTION NO. 2016-126 B) RESOLUTION NO. 2016-128 

7. CITY HOLIDAY CLOSURE SCHEDULE FOR YEAR 2017 - 
Request the City Council approve designating the days that City offices will be closed in the year 2017 
for holiday observances. (File No. 0740-30) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-132 

8. NOTICE OF COMPLETION: RECYCLED WATER EASTERLY MAIN EXTENSION - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Director of Utilities to file a Notice of Completion for 
the Recycled Water Easterly Main Extension project. (File No. 0600-10 [A-3121]) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Utilities Department: Christopher W. McKinney) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-131 

September 14, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 559 



9. CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR THE CHEMICAL BID AWARD WITH OLIN CORPORATION - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing a first amendment to the chemical bid award with Olin 
Corporation in the amount $325,000. (File No. 0470-25) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Utilities Department: Christopher W. McKinney) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-139 

10. SAN DIEGO HUMAN TRAFFICKING TASK FORCE AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council approve accepting San Diego Human Trafficking Task Force funding from the 
United States Department of Justice; authorize the Chief of Police or his designee to execute task force 
documents on behalf of the City; and approve the budget adjustments needed to spend the grant 
funds. (File No. 0430-80) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter) 

11. FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 STATE OF CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY SELECTIVE 
TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT GRANT AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Escondido Police Department to accept a Fiscal Year 
2016-17 California Office of Traffic Safety Selective Traffic Enforcement Program Grant in the amount 
of $310,000; authorize the Chief of Police or his designee to execute grant documents on behalf of the 
City; and approve the budget adjustments needed to spend the grant funds. (File No. 0480-70) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter) 

12. FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL 
JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT - LOCAL SOLICITATION AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Chief of Police to receive a $46,313 Fiscal Year 2015-
16 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant; authorize the Chief of Police or his designee to 
execute grant documents on behalf of the City; and approve the budget adjustments needed to spend 
the grant funds. (File No. 0480-70) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter) 

13. FIREHOUSE SUBS PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION DONATION OF AUTOMATED EXTERNAL 
DEFIBRILLATOR - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Escondido Police Department to accept one donated 
automated external defibrillator from the Firehouse Subs Public Safety Foundation. (File No. 0150-20) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter) 

14. DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY: 1750 CITRACADO PARKWAY, LOT #74 AT MOUNTAIN 
SHADOWS MOBILE HOME PARK - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Real Property Manager and the City Clerk to execute 
documents necessary to complete the sale of 1750 Citracado Parkway, Lot #74 at Mountain Shadows 
Mobile Home Park. (File No. 0690-20) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Manager's Office: Joyce Masterson/Debra Lundy) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-136 

September 14, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 560 



15. AMENDMENT TO PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT: 700 WEST GRAND AVENUE - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Real Property Manager and the City Clerk to execute 
a third amendment to the Purchase and Sale Agreement for the sale of 700 West Grand Avenue to 
Integral Partners Funding, LLC. (File No. 0690-20) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Manager's Office: Joyce Masterson/Debra Lundy) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-135 

MOTION: Moved by Deputy Mayor Morasco and seconded by Councilmember Diaz to approve authorizing the 
Real Property Manager and the City Clerk to execute a third amendment to the Purchase and Sale Agreement 
for the sale of 700 West Grand Avenue to Integral Partners Funding, LLC and adopt Resolution No. 2016-135. 
Ayes: Diaz, Gallo and Morasco. Noes: None. Abstained: Masson and Abed. Motion carried. 

16. ALL-WAY STOP CONTROL REQUEST FOR THE INTERSECTION OF NORTH ESCONDIDO 
BOULEVARD AND WEST LINCOLN AVENUE - 
Request the City Council approve amending the schedule of stop signs for the intersection of North 
Escondido Boulevard and West Lincoln Avenue. (File No. 1050-50) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department/Engineering: Ed Domingue) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-125 

CONSENT — RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/Successor 
Agency/RRB at a previous City Council/Successor Agency/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting. (The title of 
Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

September 14, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 561 



PUBLIC HEARINGS 

17. SHORT-FORM RENT REIVEW BOARD HEARING FOR CASA GRANDE MOBILE ESTATES - 
Request the City Council consider for approval the short-form rent increase application submitted by 
Casa Grande Mobile Estates, and if approved, grant an increase of 75 percent of the change in the 
Consumer Price Index, or 1.836 percent (an average of $9.65) for the period of December 31, 2014 to 
December 31, 2015. (File No. 0697-20-10094) 

Staff Recommendation: Consider for Approval (City Manager's Office: Jay Petrek) 

RRB RESOLUTION NO. 2016-13 

Karen Youel, Housing and Neighborhood Services Manager, presented the staff report, utilizing a PowerPoint 
presentation. 

Mayor Abed opened the public hearing and asked if anyone would like to speak on this issue in any way. 

Kent Johns, Owners Representative, addressed issues in the park, spoke about the removal of the dog 
park and noted restrooms being locked. 

Marko McNeiland and Joan DeVries, Resident Representatives, shared minutes from a previous park 
meeting. 

David Martin, Escondido, shared information about Home Owners' associations. 

Mayor Abed asked if anyone else wanted to speak on this issue in any way. No one asked to be heard. 
Therefore, he closed the public hearing. 

MOTION: Moved by Deputy Mayor Morasco and seconded by Councilmember Gallo to approve the short-form 
rent increase application submitted by Casa Grande Mobile Estates, and if approved, grant an increase of 75 
percent of the change in the Consumer Price Index, or 1.836 percent (an average of $9.65) for the period of 
December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2015 and adopt RRB Resolution No. 2016-13. Ayes: Gallo, Masson, 
Morasco and Abed. Noes: Diaz. Absent: None. Motion carried. 

18. RECOMMENDATION FOR ALLOCATION OF HOME FUNDS TO CYPRESS COVE APARTMENTS 
Request the City Council approve allocating an additional $500,000 of HOME funds to the Cypress Cove 
Affordable Housing Project at 260 North Midway and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute an 
amendment to the current Affordable Housing Agreement and all necessary loan and supporting 
agreements in forms acceptable to the City Attorney. (File No. 0873-01) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Manager's Office: Jay Petrek) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-140 

Karen Youel, Housing and Neighborhood Services Manager, presented the staff report, utilizing a PowerPoint 
presentation. 

Mayor Abed opened the public hearing and asked if anyone would like to speak on this issue in any way. 

Anne Wilson, Community Housing Works, thanked the Council for support and noted project's balcony 
issues. 

Mayor Abed asked if anyone else wanted to speak on this issue in any way. No one asked to be heard. 
Therefore, he closed the public hearing. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Diaz and seconded by Deputy Mayor Morasco to approve allocating an 
additional $500,000 of HOME funds to the Cypress Cove Affordable Housing Project at 260 North Midway and 
authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute an amendment to the current Affordable Housing Agreement 
and all necessary loan and supporting agreements in forms acceptable to the City Attorney and adopt Resolution 
No. 2016-140. Motion carried unanimously. 

September 14, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 562 



19. MASTER AND PRECISE DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND ZONE CHANGE FOR THE VICTORY 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT (PHG 15-0042 AND ENV 15-0017) - 
Request the City Council approve the proposed Master and Precise Development Plan for the proposed 
Victory Industrial Park project and Zone Change from Single-Family Residential (R-1-6) to Planned 
Development-Industrial (PD-I). (File No. 0800-10) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-10 (Introduction and First Reading) 

Councilmember Masson abstained and left the dais. 

Bill Martin, Director of Community Development, presented the staff report, utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

Mayor Abed opened the public hearing and asked if anyone would like to speak on this issue in any way. No 
one asked to be heard. Therefore, he closed the public hearing. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Gallo and seconded by Councilmember Diaz to approve the proposed 
Master and Precise Development Plan for the proposed Victory Industrial Park project and Zone Change from 
Single-Family Residential (R-1-6) to Planned Development-Industrial (PD-I) and introduce Ordinance No. 2016-
10. Ayes: Diaz, Gallo, Morasco, and Abed. Noes: None. Abstained: Masson. Motion carried. 

20. GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT, ZONE CHANGE, AND MASTER AND PRECISE DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN (PHG 16-0006 AND ENV 16-0002) - 
Request the City Council approve a General Plan Amendment to change the allowed building height in 
the Planned Commercial (PC) land use designation from three stories to four stories and to change the 
designation of the parcel addressed as 222 West Mission Avenue (APN: 229-120-76) from General 
Commercial (GC) to Planned Commercial (PC); approve a Zone Change for the same parcel from 
General Commercial (GC) to Planned Development-Commercial (PD-C); and approve a Master and 
Precise Development Plan for the same parcel for a four-story, 102,774-SF commercial building to 
contain a self-storage facility and retail/restaurant space. (File No. 0830-20) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-11 (Introduction and First Reading) 

Bill Martin, Director of Community Development, presented the staff report, utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

Mayor Abed opened the public hearing and asked if anyone would like to speak on this issue in any way. 

Heather Riley, San Diego, shared information about the William Warren Group. 

Mayor Abed asked if anyone else wanted to speak on this issue in any way. No one asked to be heard. 
Therefore, he closed the public hearing. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Masson and seconded by Councilmember Gallo to approve a General Plan 
Amendment to change the allowed building height in the Planned Commercial (PC) land use designation from 
three stories to four stories and to change the designation of the parcel addressed as 222 West Mission Avenue 
(APN: 229-120-76) from General Commercial (GC) to Planned Commercial (PC); approve a Zone Change for 
the same parcel from General Commercial (GC) to Planned Development-Commercial (PD-C); and approve a 
Master and Precise Development Plan for the same parcel for a four-story, 102,774-SF commercial building to 
contain a self-storage facility and retail/restaurant space and introduce Ordinance No. 2016-11. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

September 14, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 563 



21. ZONING CODE AMENDMENT AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REGARDING 
POSTSECONDARY VOCATIONAL TRAINING SCHOOLS (AZ 16-0003 AND PHG 16-0008) - 
Request the City Council approve amending the Zoning Code to allow postsecondary vocational training 
schools as a Conditional Use within the Industrial zones and approve the proposed Conditional Use 
Permit for a postsecondary vocational training school. (File No. 0810-20) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

A) RESOLUTION NO. 2016-129 B) ORDINANCE NO. 2016-12 (Introduction and First Reading) 

Bill Martin, Director of Community Development, introduced Adam Finestone. 

Adam Finestone, Principal Planner, presented the staff report, utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

Mayor Abed opened the public hearing and asked if anyone would like to speak on this issue in any way. 

Kimberly Boon, Applicant Representative, explained services the school will provide. 

Mayor Abed asked if anyone else wanted to speak on this issue in any way. No one asked to be heard. 
Therefore, he closed the public hearing. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Gallo and seconded by Councilmember Masson to approve amending the 
Zoning Code to allow postsecondary vocational training schools as a Conditional Use within the Industrial zones 
and approve the proposed Conditional Use Permit for a postsecondary vocational training school and adopt 
Resolution No. 2016-129 and introduce Ordinance No. 2016-12. Motion carried unanimously. 

22. FUTURE AGENDA - 
The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 
announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

Mayor Abed shared information from his meeting with the new Council General of Mexico, and her 
Deputy Council General; Mayor Abed was reappointed to the Board of San Diego EDC. 

CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE/BRIEFING 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 
Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. 

• CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE - 

September 14, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 564 



Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 6:42 p.m. 

MAYOR 

MINUTES CLERK  

CITY CLERK 

September 14, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 55 Page 565 



Agenda Item No.: 3 
Date: January 11, 2017 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

December 7, 2016 
3:30 P.M. Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 3:30 p.m. on Wednesday, December 
7, 2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

ATTENDANCE: 
The following members were present: Councilmember Ed Gallo, Councilmember John Masson, Deputy Mayor 
Michael Morasco, and Mayor Sam Abed. Councilmember Olga Diaz was absent. Quorum present. 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

CLOSED SESSION: (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/ RRB) 

MOTION: On the recommendation of the City Attorney Jeffrey Epp, Deputy Mayor Morasco moved to add 
an item to Closed Session pursuant to the authority of Government Code Section 54954.2(b)(2) and then to 
recess to Closed Session; the motion was seconded by Councilmember Gallo. The matter to be added was 
City Manager — Employment pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b)(1). The need to discuss the 
matter arose subsequent to the posting of the agenda last week as difficulties arose with regard to 
Councilmember schedules and the ability to meet the week of December 19 became apparent, as well as 
schedules involving the City Manager recruitment firm retained by the City. 

Council adopted the motion to add the item to the Closed Session agenda and then recess to Closed Session 
by a vote of 4/0/1; Councilmember Diaz was absent. 

I. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54957.6) 
a. Agency Negotiator: Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 

Employee Organization: Non-Sworn Police Bargaining Unit 
b. Agency Negotiator: Sheryl Bennett and Graham Mitchell 

Employee Organization: Escondido Police Officers Association 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-- EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code 
54956.9(d)(1)) 

Case Name: City of Escondido, et al. v. Matosantos, et al.  
Case No: 34-2013-80001467-CU-WM-GDS 

ITEMS I.a., Lb., AND II. WERE NOT DISCUSSED. 

December 7, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 11 



Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 3:54 p.m. 

   

MAYOR 

 

CITY CLERK 

DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

  

December 7, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 12 



CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

December 7, 2016 
4:30 P.M. Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 
Mobilehome Rent Review Board 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, December 
7, 2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION 
None 

FLAG SALUTE 
Troop 668 Boy Scout Eric Coy led the Flag Salute 

A'TTENDANCE: 
The following members were present: Councilmember Ed Gallo, Councilmember John Masson, Deputy Mayor 
Michael Morasco, and Mayor Sam Abed. Councilmember Olga Diaz was absent. Quorum present. 

Also present were: Graham Mitchell, City Manager; Jeffrey Epp, City Attorney; Bill Martin, Director of Community 
Development; Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services; Diane Halverson, City Clerk; and Jennifer Klein, 
Deputy City Clerk. 

Mayor Abed requested City Attorney Jeffrey Epp to make a report from Closed Session. City Attorney Jeffrey 
Epp announced that the City Council acted in Closed Session to work with current City Manager, Graham 
Mitchell, to extend his resignation date to continue serving as City Manager through February 15, 2017. We 
have executed that agreement and it is a public document. 

Councilmember Masson removed item 6 for discussion. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Gallo and seconded by Councilmember Masson to approve the following 
Consent Calendar items with the exception of item 6. Ayes: Gallo, Masson, Morasco, and Abed. Noes: None. 
Absent: Diaz. Motion carried. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY/ RRB) 

2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council/Successor Agency) 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A) Special Meeting of November 9, 2016 B) Regular Meeting of 

November 16, 2016 

December 7, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 13 



4. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO AND THE 
ESCONDIDO FIREFIGHTERS' ASSOCIATION - SAFETY AND NON-SAFETY BARGAINING 
UNIT AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council approve the execution of a Memorandum of Understanding between the City 
of Escondido and the Escondido Firefighters' Association, Safety and Non-Safety Bargaining Unit, for a 
one-year term commencing January 1, 2017 through December 30, 2017 and approve a budget 
adjustment appropriating $38,670 to cover increased contract costs. The Fiscal Year 2016-17 General 
Fund Operating Budget did not allocate funds for contract increases, but it is anticipated that budgetary 
saving at year end will cover these increased costs. (File No. 0740-30) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-174 

5. APPROVAL OF MICROSOFT LICENSING ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Interim Director of Information Systems to enter into 
a three-year agreement with Softchoice Corp. to provide Microsoft Software Assurance via a Microsoft 
Licensing Enterprise Agreement. (File No. 0600-10 [A-3205]) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Information Systems Department: Mitch Howard) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-175 

6. FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE BANKING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BANK OF AMERICA 
TO CONTINUE BANKING SERVICES FOR ONE YEAR, THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2017 - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Finance Director (Director of Administrative Services) 
and the City Clerk to execute a fourth amendment to renew a one (1) year contract with Bank of 
America to provide banking and merchant services to the City through December 31, 2017. With 
satisfactory performance and mutual agreement between the City and the Bank, the City may opt to 
renew for two (2) additional one-year contract extensions for a total of three (3) years. (File No. 0600-
10 [A-2249]) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-177 

Councilmember Masson questioned the extension of the banking services agreement with Bank of America 
and commented regarding requests for proposals with other banks. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Masson and seconded by Councilmember Gallo to approve authorizing 
the Finance Director (Director of Administrative Services) and the City Clerk to execute a fourth amendment to 
renew a one (1) year contract with Bank of America to provide banking and merchant services to the City 
through December 31, 2017. With satisfactory performance and mutual agreement between the City and the 
Bank, the City may opt to renew for two (2) additional one-year contract extensions for a total of three (3) 
years. Ayes: Gallo, Masson Morasco, Abed. Noes: None. Absent: Diaz. Motion carried. 

December 7, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 14 



CONSENT — RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/Successor 
Agency/RRB at a previous City Council/Successor Agency/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting. (The title of 
Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

7. ADOPTION OF THE 2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING, FIRE, RESIDENTIAL, PLUMBING, 
ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL, AND ENERGY CODES, GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS 
CODE, AND LOCAL AMENDMENTS - 
Approved on November 16, 2016 with a vote of 5/0 (File No. 0680-50) 

A) ORDINANCE NO. 2016-09 (Second Reading and Adoption) 

B) ORDINANCE NO. 2016-17 (Second Reading and Adoption) 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

8. SHORT-FORM RENT INCREASE APPLICATION FOR GREENCREST MOBILEHOME PARK - 
Request the City Council consider for approval the short-form rent increase application submitted by 
Greencrest Mobilehome Park and if approved, grant an increase of 75 percent of the change in the 
Consumer Price Index, or 1.482 percent (an average of $6.58) for the period of June 30, 2015 to June 
30, 2016. (File No. 0697-20-10105) 

Staff Recommendation: Consider for Approval (City Manager's Office: Jay Petrek) 

RRB RESOLUTION NO. 2016-14 

Belinda Rojas, Program Administrator, presented the staff report, utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

Jim Younce, Owner's Representative, noted that the broken window was repaired. He was available to answer 
any further questions. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Gallo and seconded by Deputy Mayor Morasco to approve the short-form 
rent increase application submitted by Greencrest Mobilehome Park granting an increase of 75 percent of the 
change in the Consumer Price Index, or 1.482 percent (an average of $6.58) for the period of June 30, 2015 
to June 30, 2016. Ayes: Gallo, Masson, Morasco, and Abed. Noes: None. Absent: Diaz. Motion carried. 

9. ANNUAL AND FIVE-YEAR REPORTS ON CAPITAL FUNDS FUNDED BY DEVELOPER FEES FOR 
THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2% ADJUSTMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT 
IMPACT FEES - 
Request the City Council approve making required findings for the annual and five-year Reports on 
Capital Funds Funded by Developer Fees for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016; and approve a 2% 
adjustment for Development Impact Fees. (File No. 0480-45) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Sheryl Bennett and Engineering 
Services Department: Julie Procopio) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-173R 

Jay Petrek, Assistant City Manager, and Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services, presented the staff 
report, utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Masson and seconded by Deputy Mayor Morasco to approve making 
required findings for the annual and five-year Reports on Capital Funds Funded by Developer Fees for the Fiscal 
Year Ended June 30, 2016; and approve a 2% adjustment for Development Impact Fees. Ayes: Gallo, Masson, 
Morasco, and Abed. Noes: None. Absent: Diaz. Motion carried. 

December 7, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 15 



FUTURE AGENDA 

10. FUTURE AGENDA - 
The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 
announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

COUNCIL MEMBERS' SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

Councilmember Gallo shared a report regarding the Central Valley and Delta water supply presented at the the 
San Diego County Water Authority meeting. Deputy Mayor Morasco attended the California Center for the Arts, 
Escondido Subcommittee Meeting, and shared information on new after school arts programs, upcoming 
museum exhibits, a potential ground lease to ASB (A Step Beyond dance program), and a discussion on a 
potential hotel project. 

Mayor Abed reported on the SANDAG meeting and commented that the 78 connection is a priority for North 
County. He also indicated his recent appointment as chair of LAFCO and shared information concerning the 
"islands" within North County. 

CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE/BRIEFING 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 
Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. 

• CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE - 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 5:19 p.m. 

MAYOR 

  

CITY CLERK 

DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

   

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 16 December 7, 2016 



Agenda Item No.: 3 
Date: January 11, 2017 

December 14, 2016 
6:00 P.M. Special Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 

The Special Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday, December 
14, 2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

FLAG SALUTE: 
Police and Fire Color Guard led the flag salute. 

NATIONAL ANTHEM: 
Officer Beverly Holtz sang the National Anthem. 

INVOCATION: 
Dennis Keating gave the invocation. 

ROLL CALL: 
The following members were present: Councilmember Diaz, Councilmember Gallo, Councilmember Masson, 
Deputy Mayor Morasco, and Mayor Abed. Quorum present. 

Also present were: Graham Mitchell, City Manager; Jeffrey Epp, City Attorney; Diane Halverson, City Clerk, and 
Jennifer Klein, Deputy City Clerk. 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

1. CERTIFICATION OF 2016 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION RESULTS - 
Request the City Council approve certifying the November 8, 2016, City of Escondido General Municipal 
Election and declare the results. (File No. 0650-40) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-176 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Diaz and seconded by Councilmember Gallo to approve the Certification 
of the November 8, 2016 City of Escondido General Municipal election, declare the results, and adopt Resolution 
No. 2016-176. Motion carried unanimously. 

December 14, 2016 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 17 



2. INSTALLATION OF OFFICERS: The Honorable Judge Harry Elias 

• Olga Diaz, Councilmember — District Three 
• Michael Morasco, Councilmember — District Four 
• Douglas Shultz, City Treasurer 

The Honorable Judge Harry Elias administered the Oath of Office to Olga Diaz, Councilmember, District Three; 
Michael Morasco, Councilmember, District Four; and Douglas Shultz, City Treasurer. 

3. COMMENTS FROM OUTGOING CITY TREASURER, Kenneth C. Hugins 

4. COMMENTS FROM NEWLY ELECTED OFFICERS 

  

CURRENT BUSINESS 

 

  

S. APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY MAYOR - 

Staff Recommendation: None 

MOTION: Moved by Deputy Mayor Morasco and seconded by Councilmember Diaz to appoint Councilmember 
Masson as Deputy Mayor for a term of two years. Motion carried unanimously. 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 6:27 p.m. 

MAYOR 

 

CITY CLERK 

DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

  

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 18 December 14, 2016 



City of Choice "."-- 
ESCQcsI

-11
DIDO For City Clerk's Use: 

APPROVED DENIED 

ennett 
Director of Administrative Services 

Reso No. File No. 

      

CITY COUNCIL Ord No. 

    

      

Agenda Item No.:  4 

 

  

 

Date: January 11, 2017 

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Sheryl Bennett, Director of Administrative Services 
Jodi Vinson, Risk and Safety Manager 

SUBJECT: Approval of CalPERS Industrial Disability Retirement for Beverly Holtz 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2017-01, approving the California Public 
Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) Industrial Disability Retirement for Police Officer Beverly 
Holtz. 

BACKGROUND: 

Ms. Holtz is a 48-year-old female Police Officer. She has been employed by the City of Escondido for 
over 17 years. The basis for Ms. Holtz's Industrial Disability Retirement application is confirmed by 
medical reports from Beth Bathgate, M.D. Ms. Holtz's condition is orthopedic in nature. Accordingly, 
Ms. Holtz is incapacitated within the meaning of the Public Employees' Retirement Law for the 
performance of her usual and customary duties in the position of Police Officer. 

Under State Law, the City Council is required to adopt a Resolution determining that competent 
medical evidence supports the granting of an Industrial Disability Retirement. Based on medical 
evidence, staff recommends the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2017-01, approving the CalPERS 
Industrial Disability Retirement for Beverly Holtz to be effective January 13, 2017. 

CalPERS requires the City to make advance disability pension payments while they process the 
application. Upon approval, the City will receive a full refund. 

Respectfuk submitted, 

nson 
Risk and Safety Manager 

Staff Report - Council 



Agenda Item No.: 4 
Date: January 11, 2017 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
APPROVING THE CALPERS INDUSTRIAL 
DISABILITY RETIREMENT FOR BEVERLY 
HOLTZ 

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido is a contracting agency of the California 

Public Employees' Retirement System ("CalPERS"); and 

WHEREAS, the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that a 

contracting agency determine whether an employee of such agency in employment in 

which he is classified as a local safety member is disabled for purposes of the Public 

Employees' Retirement Law and whether such disability is "industrial" within the 

meaning of such law; and 

WHEREAS, an application for Industrial Disability Retirement of Beverly Holtz 

employed by the Agency in the position of Police Officer has been filed with CalPERS; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido has reviewed the medical and other 

evidence relevant to such alleged disability. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. The City Council of the City of Escondido does find and determine that 

Beverly Holtz is incapacitated within the meaning of the Public Employees' Retirement 

Law for performance of her usual duties in the position of Police Officer; and 

3. That the City Council of the City of Escondido does find and determine 

that such disability is a result of injury or disease arising out of and in the course of 



employment. 

4. That neither Beverly Holtz nor the City of Escondido has applied to the 

Workers' Compensation Appeals Board for a determination pursuant to California 

Government Code Section 21166 as to whether such disability is industrial. 

5. That there is not a possibility of third party liability. 

6. That advanced disability pension payments will be made monthly in the 

amount of $3890.00 beginning February 1, 2017. Ms. Holtz's last day on payroll will be 

January 12, 2017. A partial advanced disability pension payment for the remainder of 

January 2017 will be made in the amount of $2500.00. 

7. That the City Council of the City of Escondido finds that Ms. Holtz's 

disability is orthopedic in nature, and arose out of and in the course of employment. 



For City Clerk's Use: 

Agenda Item No.:  5  

ESCCLN
City of Choice 

,DIDO 
Reso No. He No. 

Date: January 11, 2017 

Res tfully sub i 

five ervices 

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Sheryl Bennett, Director of Administrative Services 

SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Escondido and the Police Officers' 
Association — Non-Sworn Bargaining Unit. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2017-09, approving the execution of a Memorandum 
of Understanding between the City of Escondido and the Police Officers' Association Non-Sworn Bargaining 
Unit, fora one-year term commencing July 1,2016 through June 30, 2017. 

It is also requested that the City Council approve a budget adjustment appropriating $56,055 to cover 
increased contract costs. The Fiscal Year 2016-17 General Fund Operating Budget did not allocate funds for 
contract increases, but it is anticipated that budgetary savings at year end will cover these increased costs. 
The financial impact will be included in the Fiscal Year 2017-18 General Fund Operating Budget for the Police 
Department. 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

Cost to the General Fund for Fiscal Year 2016-17 is $56,055. 

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

On July 23, 2014, the City Council voted to adopt the Memorandum of Understanding between the Escondido 
Police Officers' Association Non-Sworn Bargaining Unit and the City of Escondido, for a two-year term that 
expired on June 30, 2016. 

BACKGROUND: 

City staff has met with the Escondido Police Officers' Association Non-Sworn Bargaining Unit, regarding terms 
and conditions of Employment that expired on June 30, 2016. The attached resolution outlines changes to 
working conditions and compensation that the Police Officers' Association Non-Sworn Bargaining Unit has 
agreed to during this negotiation process. 

Members of the Bargaining Unit have voted in support of the terms and conditions on December 23, 2016. 

Staff Report - Council 



ESCCARIDO 
City of Choice —100."".--  

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUEST 

Date of Request: 1/11/2017 

Department: Finance 

Division: 

Project/Budget Manager: Joan Ryan 4338 
Name Extension 

Council Date (if applicable): 1/11/2017  
(attach copy of staff report) 

Project/Account Description Account Number Amount of Increase Amount of Decrease 

Regular Full Time 5001-001-500 39,490 

Other Employee Overhead 5025-001-500 620 

PERS 5026-001-500 12,160 

Workers Comp 5028-001-500 1,285 

Transfer Out 5999-001-000 2,500 

Transfer In 4999-692-000 2,500 

Tuition 5184-692-723 2,500 

Fund Balance 3050-001-000 56,055 

Explanation of Request: 

FY 2016-17 increased contract costs due to approval by the City Council of the Memorandum of Understanding 
between the City and the NSP Bargaining Unit on January 11, 2017. 

 

APPROVALS 

  

     

D te City Manager 

if  
Date City Clerk 

Date 

Date 

Distribution (after approval): Original: Finance 

FM\105 (Rev.11/06) 

For Finance Use Only  

Log # 0  

Fiscal Year 671— 0 /  

 Budget Balances 
 General Fund Accts 
 Revenue 
 Interfund Transfers 

Fund Balance 



Agenda Item No.: 5 
Date: January 11, 2017 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-09 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH 
THE ESCONDIDO POLICE OFFICERS' 
ASSOCIATION, NON-SWORN BARGAINING 
UNIT 

JULY 1, 2016 — JUNE 30, 2017 

WHEREAS, negotiating teams from the City of Escondido and the Escondido Police 

Officers' Association, Non-Sworn Bargaining Unit, have been duly appointed and have 

been conducting meet-and-confer sessions with respect to matters affecting both parties; 

and 

WHEREAS, a successor Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") by the City of 

Escondido ("City") and the Escondido Police Officers' Association, Non-Sworn Bargaining 

Unit ("Association"), is necessary as a result of meeting and conferring in good faith 

concerning wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment; and 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the successor MOU to provide for continuation of the 

harmonious relationship between the City and the Association; and 

WHEREAS, this City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to approve a successor MOU and certain other modifications. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2 The City's negotiating team is authorized to execute, on behalf of the City, a 

successor MOU extending the term of the MOU through June 30, 2017, and also including 

terms as set forth in Exhibit "A" which is attached to this resolution and incorporated by this 

reference. 



Exhibit "A" 
Resolution 2017-09 

Page 1 of 1 
City of Escondido 

Escondido Police Officers' Association, Non-Sworn Bargaining Unit 
Successor Memorandum of Understanding 

July 1, 2016— June 30, 2017 

1. Term: July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017. None of the terms are retroactive. All changes take effect 
upon the agreed effective date after City Council adoption of the Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU). 

2. Article 2, Salaries and Compensation, Section 2.02, Salary: 

Effective pay period beginning January 15, 2017, the base salary range for Public Safety Dispatcher 
I/II and Public Safety Shift Supervisor shall be increased by one and one-half percent (1.5%) in 
recognition of adding the following job requirement: Successful training and obtainment of an 
Emergency Medical Dispatching certification must be completed within six (6) months of hire. 

3. Article 2, Salaries and Compensation, Section 2.07, Out-of-Class Compensation (Additional 
Language): 

Effective pay period beginning January 15, 2017, a Public Safety Dispatcher II who works as an 
acting Public Safety Shift Supervisor during a shift and in the absence of a Public Safety Shift 
Supervisor, shall be entitled to receive an hourly stipend equivalent to five percent (5%) above Step 
5 (base salary) of a Public Safety Dispatcher II. This is limited to one Public Safety Dispatcher II per 
shift. 

4. Article 2, Salaries and Compensation, Section 2.08, Shift Differential: 

Effective pay period beginning January 15, 2016, shift differential shall be increased from $1.00/hour 
to $1.50 per hour, as outlined within this section. 

5. Article 7, Tuition Reimbursement 

Effective pay period beginning January 15, 2017, reinstate the Tuition Reimbursement Policy. A 
maximum of $2,500 for the Non-Sworn Police Unit will be allotted each fiscal year for the use of 
tuition reimbursement as outlined within this Article. 

6. MOU Language Clean-Up: 

General MOU Language clean-up was provided to the POA/NSP for review and feedback, and 
subsequently agreed upon. 



City of Choice 
ESCCADIDO 

Ord No. 

Agenda Item No.:  (0  
Date: January 11, 2017 

For City Clerk's Use: 

APPROVED 
Reso No. 

DENIED 
File No. 

Principal Engineer 

Respectfully submitted, 

/19 

e Procopio, P.E. 
Director of Engineering Services/City Engineer 

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services/City Engineer 
Owen Tunnell, Principal Engineer 

SUBJECT: Final Map, Escondido Tract 877, located at 1995 Bernardo Avenue 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is requested that the City Council approve the Final Map for Tract 877, a 13-Lot Residential 
Subdivision located at 1995 Bernardo Avenue. 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The cost for review of the Final Map is paid by the developer in accordance with the adopted fee 
schedule. 

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

This project was recommended for approval by the Planning Commission on May 9, 2006, as 
Resolution No. 5692 and approved by the City Council on June 7, 2006, as Resolution No. 2006-116 
and Ordinance No. 2006-22 for a Zone Change. The City Council subsequently approved a Street 
Vacation for a portion of Bernardo Avenue on October 14, 2009, as Resolution No. 2009-109 and an 
Extension of Time on June 22, 2016, as Resolution No. 2016-92. 

BACKGROUND: 

Staff has examined this Final Map and found it to be mathematically correct and in substantial 
conformance to the approved Tentative Subdivision Map and subject to the conditions of approval. 
This Final Map conforms to the provisions of the Subdivision Map Act and any local ordinances 
applicable at the time of approval. The Planning Department has reviewed and approved this Final 
Map. 

Staff Report - Council 



VI CI NITY MAR 
NO SCALE 



For City Clerk's Use: 

APPROVED 
Reso No, 

DENIED 
File No. 

ES ONDIDO 
City of Choice 

Ord No. 

Procopio 
rector of Engineering Services/City Engineer 

Agenda Item No.: 
Date: January 11,2017 

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services/City Engineer 
Matt Souttere, Associate Engineer 

SUBJECT: Reject All Bids for the Jim Stone Pool Renovation Project 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2017-08, rejecting all bids for the Jim Stone Pool 
Renovation Project and authorizing staff to re-bid the project. 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The project is funded through a Housing Related Parks (HRP) Grant that is required to be spent by June 
30, 2017. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  

On November 14, 2012 and November 19, 2014, the City Council authorized staff to accept and allocate 
$131,000 and $548,600 in HRP funds, respectively, for repair of Jim Stone Pool. 

BACKGROUND: 

Existing pools and facilities are deteriorating and in need of repair. This project will repair rust, leaks, re-
plaster both pools, and replace mechanical equipment as needed. 

Competitive bids were received on December 22, 2016, with the following results: 

1) Nuera Contracting $924,957.36 
2) California Waters Development, Inc., Yorba Linda $1,398,000.00 

The apparent low bidder was sixteen percent higher than the engineer's estimate of $800,000. Staff 
recommends that the City Council reject all bids and authorize rebid with a reduced project scope to fit 
within the available funding. 

ectfully submitted, 

Matt Souttere 
Associate Engineer 

Staff Report - Council 



Agenda Item No.: 7 
Date: January 11, 2017 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-08 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE REJECTION OF ALL 
BIDS FOR THE JIM STONE POOL 
RENOVATION PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Escondido City Council authorized an invitation for bids for the 

Jim Stone Pool Renovation Project; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido opened the sealed bids for the project on 

December 22, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the bids received had a wide range from $925,957 up to 

$1,398,000; and 

WHEREAS, City staff will update the project bid documents to fit available 

funding; and 

WHEREAS, Public Contract Code Section 20166 authorizes a local agency, at 

its own discretion, to reject all bids and re-advertise a project; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Engineering Services/City Engineer has 

recommended the rejection of all bids. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

I. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the City Council accepts the recommendation of the Director of 

Engineering Services/City Engineer to reject all bids for the project and to re-advertise 



the project for bids. 

3. That the City Council does, by adoption of this Resolution, reject all bids 

received and opened for the project by the City Clerk on December 22, 2016, and 

directs staff to re-advertise for bids as soon as possible. 







http://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/escondidoinnovationcenter/finalmnd.pdf






























































































































































PHG 16-0014 
January 11, 2017 
Page 2 
 

Negative Declaration (MND) on file with the Planning Division and City Clerk’s Office, and available 
electronically at the following link:  
 
http://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/mfro/isfmnd.pdf      
 
LOCATION: 
 
The 4.5-acre project site is located on the southeast corner of E. Washington Avenue and N. Ash 
Street, addressed as 1201 E. Washington Avenue (APN 230-141-01-00). 
 
FISCAL ANALYSIS:   
 
The estimated construction cost for the facility is $32.7 million.  Funds are presently available in CIP 
801508 – MFRO Facility for Agriculture.  
 
PREVIOUS ACTION:   
 
On July 20, 2016, the City Council awarded a Consulting Agreement (Resolution No. 2016-108) to 
Black and Veatch Corporation for the first phase of the redesign of a Membrane Filtration/Reverse 
Osmosis Facility for treatment of recycled water for agricultural irrigation in the amount of $200,000. 
 
GENERAL PLAN ANALYSIS: 
 
The proposed MF/RO is consistent with the purposes of various General Plan goals, policies, and 
quality of life standards.  These goals, policies, and quality of life standards are related to water 
conservation, reclamation, and recycling, infrastructure planning, hazardous materials, agriculture, 
and property development.  Staff believes that the findings of fact made by the Planning Commission 
demonstrate consistency of the project with the General Plan.  A more detailed General Plan analysis 
can be found in the Planning Commission staff report, the Planning Commission’s findings of fact, 
and elsewhere in the Planning Commission record.    
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
An MND has been prepared for the project in conformance with the California Environmental Quality 
Act and was adopted by the Planning Commission. All project related impacts that are significant 
have been mitigated and there will be no significant impacts from the project.  A narrative of the 
environmental review process conducted for the project can be found in the Planning Commission 
staff report, and the MND can be accessed at the link provided above. 
 

































































































































































































 

 1 

January 5, 2017 
 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS 
 

No Special Events this week 
 

 For information about other activities taking place in Escondido, please visit 
www.visitescondido.com  
 

COMMUNITY SERVICES 
Escondido Soccer Club’s annual New Year’s Kickoff youth soccer tournament will be playing 
January 7 & 8 at Ryan Park.  Approximately 600 families will be visiting our community for the 
two-day soccer tournament.  www.escondidosoccerclub.com 

 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
Major Projects Update 
 
Commercial / Office:  
 
1. Escondido Research and Technology Center – East (ERTC) (Developer: James McCann) – 

No change from the following update reported last week:  This is a 72,000 square foot 
medical office building proposed on the east side of Citracado Parkway across from Palomar 
Medical Center located at 2130 Citracado Parkway. A grading permit has been issued by the 
Engineering Division. Building plans have been submitted for plan check. The applicant has 
recently requested to install a temporary paved parking lot in this area to serve the hospital. A 
grading plan for the temporary parking lot was approved June 13, 2016. 

 
2. Escondido Research and Technology Center – West (ERTC) (Developer: James McCann) – 

No change from the following update reported last week:  This is a 144,000 sq. ft. 
development involving two medical office buildings proposed on the west side of Citracado 
Parkway across from Palomar Medical Center located at 2097 – 2175 Citracado Parkway. A 
grading permit has been issued by the Engineering Division. Esgil and the Planning Division 
have approved the building plans. A fee deferral agreement has been signed and the building 



 

 2 

permit was issued June 23, 2016. A tentative parcel map (TPM) for office condominiums was 
approved on July 12, 2016. A Final Parcel Map was submitted by the applicant on July 25, 
2016, and is currently being reviewed by Planning and Engineering. A modified building plan 
to add a linear accelerator is now being reviewed by staff. 

 
3. Centerpointe 78 Commercial (Developer: Lars Andersen, Pacific Development) – No change 

from the following update reported last week:  This project is a 45,650 sq. ft. supermarket 
and restaurant located at 925 N. Broadway. The project was approved by the City Council on 
December 9, 2015. Demolition of the former auto dealership has been completed down to 
the foundation. Grading plans have been submitted to Engineering and Planning for review. 
Building plans for the supermarket were submitted to the Building Division on September 14, 
2016, and are being reviewed by Building and Planning staff. A boundary adjustment 
application to place the two buildings on separate parcels went to Planning on October 14, 
2016. 

 
4. Westfield Theater (Developer: Kim Brewer, Westfield) – No change from the following update 

reported last week:  This project is a 10-auditorium movie theater totaling 57,600 sq. ft. 
located on the north side of the Westfield Mall. The project was approved by the City Council 
on November 4, 2015. 

 
5. Felicita Development, LLC (Developer: Katherine Park, Creative Design Associates) – No 

change from the following update reported last week: This project is a 140-unit hotel, and a 
gas station or office/residential care facility at the southeast corner of Felicita Rd. and 
Gamble Lane. The applicant and staff met with the architect to discuss building elevations, 
five-story height limitations and site design issues given the existing wetland constraints on 
the property. Additional technical analysis and coordination is needed to address traffic, 
biology, water and sewer service, geotechnical and storm water concerns, along with a 
market study for the proposed uses. The applicant met with the wildlife agencies and is 
responding to technical studies needed to complete the application. 

 
6. Springhill Suites (Developer: Raj Patel, San Bernardino Hospitality LLC) – This project is a 

four-story, 105-suite hotel totaling 73,300 sq. ft. located at 200 La Terraza Drive. The hotel 
includes a small conference room and an enlarged lobby for serving continental breakfast. A 
revised set of grading plans has been approved since February and grading for the hotel site 
has now started. Building plans have been approved and permit fees were paid before the 
end of the year clearing the way for construction to commence. On January 3, 2017, a new 
ownership group met with the City Council Economic Development Subcommittee and staff 
to discuss renewing the now-expired Economic Incentive Agreement that had been granted 
to the original developer. 

 
7. Escondido Auto Park Association (Developer: Tim Brecht, Escondido Auto Park Association) 

– No change from the following update reported last week: The association is proposing to 
upgrade the existing electronic message sign along I-15. An application for a new regional 
market sign and an amendment to the Sign Ordinance to increase the allowable display area 



 

 3 

for a regional market sign was submitted to the Planning Division on May 6, 2016. The 
proposed sign would be located in the same location as the existing sign at a slightly lower 
height (73.5 feet) with approximately the same overall dimensions. The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of the new regional market sign and amendment to the 
Sign Ordinance on July 12, 2016. The City Council approved the new regional market sign 
and amendment to the Sign Ordinance on August 17, 2016. Building plans are currently 
being reviewed by staff and a building permit should be issued soon. 

 
8. Downtown Courtyard Marriott Hotel (Developer: Craig Clark) – No change from the following 

update reported last week: A modification to a Master Plan and a Precise Plan for a revised 
downtown hotel design consisting of 154 rooms in four stories over ground-level parking.  
The majority of the building would be located in the parking lot between city hall and the 
CCAE conference center.  The primary entry to the hotel would be from a redesigned entry 
drive with new porte cochere on Escondido Boulevard.  The hotel would operate the 
conference center and would provide a bistro and bar area for guests.  The application was 
submitted on November 18, 2016 for processing and review.  During the course of review, 
City staff transmitted comments incrementally to the applicant.  A final letter summarizing all 
requested revisions and/or corrections was sent to the applicant on December 22, 2016. 

 
Industrial 

 
1. StorQuest (Developer: The William Warren Group, Inc.) – No change from the following 

update reported last week: This proposed project at 220 W. Mission Avenue involves a 
102,500 sq. ft., four-story self-storage facility development with three in-line shops and a 
small office. The Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the proposed 
General Plan Amendment, Planned Development and Zone Change on August 9, 2016. The 
project was approved by the City Council on September 14, 2016.  A grading plan was 
submitted for review on November 3, 2016.  Building plans were submitted during the week 
of December 19, 2016. 
 

2. Victory Industrial Development (Developer: Scott Merry, Badiee Development) – This project 
involves two industrial buildings totaling 91,000 sq. ft. (one building 55,500 sq. ft., second 
building 35,500 sq. ft.) located at 2005 Harmony Grove Road and a zone change from 
residential to Planned Industrial consistent with the updated General Plan. The Planning 
Commission voted to recommend approval of the proposed General Plan Amendment, 
Planned Development and Zone Change on August 9, 2016. It was approved by the City 
Council on September 14, 2016. Building plans were submitted into plan check the following 
day and are now being reviewed by staff.  Staff is still awaiting submittal of a proposed 
boundary adjustment application with three property owners in the adjacent Harmony Grove 
Business Park that is needed to implement the project design. 

 
3. Micro-Filtration Reverse Osmosis (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) – No 

change from the following update reported last week:  The proposed project involves a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the development of a new City facility to provide 



 

 4 

advanced treatment for recycled water produced at the City of Escondido’s Hale Avenue 
Resource Recovery Facility (HARRF) for agricultural uses with the capacity for future 
treatment for indirect potable reuse. The facility would be sized for a total production 
capacity of 2.0 million gallons per day (mgd). A previous proposal for development of the 
facility at 2512 East Washington Avenue has now been shelved while staff pursues 
development of the facility on an alternative site located on the southeastern corner of 
Washington Avenue and Ash Street. On July 20, 2016, the City Council approved a first-
phase design contract with Black and Veatch for the design effort need to bring the new 
site design to the Planning Commission for CUP consideration. Site and building design 
concepts have been developed and two neighborhood meetings were held on October 12, 
2016 and November 3, 2016. A 30-day public review period for the proposed Mitigated 
Negative Declaration ended on November 27, 2016. The Planning Commission approved 
the proposed CUP on December 13, 2016. A City Council hearing has been set for January 
11, 2017. 

 
4. Wastewater Collections Yard Expansion (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) 

– No change from the following update reported last week:  The project involves 
development of 1.8 acres of a larger, approximately 15.4-acre site for the construction of a 
new wastewater collections yard and maintenance facility for the City’s Hale Avenue 
Resource Recovery Facility (HARRF) at 1521 S. Hale Avenue. The proposed facilities will 
consist of three separate pre-fabricated metal buildings 3,735 sq. ft. - 5,670 sq. ft. for 
collections; work bays and workshops for regular maintenance of vehicles and equipment. 
The project would require the processing of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and rezone. 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing and recommended approval on May 10, 
2016. It was approved by the City Council on June 15, 2016. Grading, building and 
landscape plans are now being reviewed by staff for permit issuance. 

 
5. Escondido Self-Storage Facility (Developer: Brandywine Homes, Inc.) – No change from the 

following update reported last week:  A modification to a Master and Precise Development 
Plan for revisions to the design of a previously approved, but not yet constructed, self-storage 
facility with direct access to Brotherton Road near the intersection with Cranston Drive. The 
proposed project was submitted on May 11, 2016, and proposes approximately 77,500 SF of 
storage area in two buildings. The larger building is two stories over a basement with all 
interior loading. The smaller building is one-story with some exterior roll-up doors. The project 
site is also part of a five-lot Tentative Map for four residential lots and one commercial lot 
(Tract 900) that is concurrently being processed for an extension of time. The project was 
recommended for approval by the Planning Commission on September 13, 2016, and the 
City Council approved the project on October 12, 2016. Building plans were submitted the 
week of December 11, 2016. 

 
6. Innovative Industrial Development (Developer: Scott Merry, Badiee Development) – No 

change from the following update reported last week: This project involves a unique proposal 
in which two potential industrial development scenarios are being analyzed for the 5.76-acre 
site located at 1925 Harmony Grove Road, directly in front of the “Victory Industrial 



 

 5 

Development” described above. The first development scenario involves a single tenant 
building with 98,500 square feet and 197 parking spaces. The alternative scenario envisions 
three industrial buildings roughly within the same footprint as the single tenant proposal. The 
three industrial buildings would include a total of 86,000 square feet with 234 parking spaces. 
An industrial planned development application has been submitted along with a zone change 
from residential to Planned Industrial consistent with the updated General Plan. A Mitigated 
Negative Declaration was issued on November 7, 2016 and the public review period will 
close on November 28, 2016. The Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of 
this project on December 13, 2016.  A City Council hearing tentatively has been scheduled 
for January 11, 2017. 

 
9. HARRF Biogas to Energy Project (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) – No 

change from the following update reported last week:  This project is a proposed Conditional 
Use Permit that will utilize the existing digester gas created during the sewage treatment 
process to power two generators with a combined output of 1,200 kW of power. The gas 
which is currently being flared on the site will be redirected for a useful purpose and used to 
offset the HARRF’s demand on utility natural gas and electricity from SDG&E. The project 
was approved by the Planning Commission December 13, 2016.   

 
10. North American Self-Storage (Developer: Russ Colvin) – This project at 852 Metcalf 

proposes a 132,556 square foot, self-storage facility consisting of four stories over a full 
basement level on a 1.12-acre site in the M-1 zone.  A Plot Plan application was submitted to 
Planning on September 14, 2016 and was extensively reviewed by all departments.  The 
Planning Division issued a conditional letter of approval on December 21, 2016.  

 
Institutional 
 
1. John Paul the Great Catholic University (Developer:  Kevin Meziere, John Paul the Great 

Catholic University) – No change from the following update reported last week:  A Conditional 
Use Permit to expand the campus and student enrollment at 155 W. Grand Avenue was 
approved by the Planning Commission on December 8, 2015. The proposal includes 
improvements to the former H. Johnson site at 131 S. Broadway for studio and classroom 
space, and the former bank at 200 W. Grand Avenue for administrative offices and a student 
resource center. The proposed expansion would also increase the student enrollment from 
300 to 1,200 students over the next several years.  The university hosted an open house for 
the student resource center on November 28, 2016. 

 
2. Escondido United Reformed Church (Developer: Brent Cooper) – No change from the 

following update reported last week:  The project is an expansion for a phased, multi-year, 
master construction/development plan for a new 12,250 SF two-story sanctuary, conversion 
of existing buildings to a social hall, demolition of an existing social hall/classroom building 
(approx. 4,620 SF) and construction of approximately 5,250 SF for a nursery, multi-purpose 
room, classrooms for Sunday school at 1864 N. Broadway. Revised architectural plans were 



 

 6 

unanimously approved by the Planning Commission on June 14, 2016. The grading plans 
are now in plan check. 

 
3. Emmanuel Faith Community Church (Developer: Jim North, EFCC) – No change from the 

following update reported last week:  The project is a phased, multi-year construction and 
renovation program for the Emmanuel Faith campus that includes demolishing the existing 
children’s rooms and constructing a new nursery and children’s building for up to 200 
children, construction of a two-story training center/youth complex, renovation of the existing 
high school/college building, conversion of the existing education center into an office and 
meeting room building, demolition of the existing café and construction of a new café, 
demolition and construction of a new maintenance building, construction of a new gathering 
plaza with baptismal outdoor water feature, and reconstruction and expansion of the existing 
worship center from 1,600 seats to 2,000 seats. The Planning Commission approved the 
proposed modification to the Conditional Use Permit for the campus on June 9, 2015. 
Grading, building and landscape plans for the first phase (45,414 square foot new children’s 
building) are being reviewed by staff and Esgil.   

 
Residential 

 
1. Oak Creek (Developer: Jason Han, New Urban West) – No change from the following update 

reported last week: This project is a 65-unit single family development located at the 
southeastern corner of Felicita Road and Hamilton Lane approved by the City Council in 2015. 
The LAFCO Board unanimously approved the annexation on October 5, 2015, and the 
annexation has been recorded. No grading or improvement plans have been submitted by the 
developer at this time.  

 
2. Amanda Estates (Developer: Jason Han, New Urban West) – No change from the following 

update reported last week: This project is a 22-unit single family development on Amanda 
Lane approved by the City Council in 2015. The LAFCO Board approved the reorganization 
(annexation) at their meeting on August 3, 2015, and the annexation has been recorded. No 
grading or improvement plans have been submitted by the developer at this time. 

 
3. Pradera (Developer: Moses Kim, Lennar Homes) – No change from the following update 

reported last week:  This project consists of a 70-unit single family development located at 
the northeastern corner of Ash Street and Lehner Avenue. The developer has obtained 
building permits for six phases involving 52 homes and those phases are under construction. 
Homebuyer interest in the product remains high and sales are progressing.  All five final 
maps in the project have now recorded. Precise grading plans for all phases have now been 
approved.  Phases 7 and 8 for the construction of 11 additional homes were received on 
December 12, 2016. 

 
4. Lexington (Zenner) (Developer: Eric Johnston, KB Homes) – The project is a 40-unit, single-

family development at the northeastern corner of Lehner Avenue and Vista Avenue. The 
three model homes on the eastern side of Ash Street are now open and sales are 



 

 7 

progressing as expected. A rough grading permit was issued for the project site on August 
18, 2016 and grading is underway. The final map has been approved by City Council. The 
precise grading plan for Phase 1 has been approved.  Building plans for Phase 1 were 
submitted into plan check on December 20, 2016 and permits were issued before the end of 
the year. 

 
5. Stella Park Condominiums (Developer: Edward Kaen, ETP, LLC) – No change from the 

following update reported last week:  This project is a 65-unit, three-story townhome Planned 
Development located at 2516 S. Escondido Blvd. The project includes three separate 
recreation areas for residents. The City Council approved the project on April 27, 2016. A 
Substantial Conformance TM and proposed modification to the Precise Development Plan 
was filed by Lyon Homes on December 12, 2016.  All departments are working steadily to 
provide necessary information to meet Lyon’s timeline. 

 
6. Wohlford (Developer: Jack Henthorne) – No change from the following update reported last 

week:  This project is a 55-unit single family development located on Bear Valley Parkway 
east of Encino Drive. A Specific Alignment Plan for Bear Valley Parkway detailing the 
proposed roadway design is under review. The EIR consultant has submitted the first 
screencheck version of the Draft EIR for staff review. Staff has provided comments and a 
second screencheck is expected by the end of January. An application for a Development 
Agreement has recently been submitted by the applicant. 
 

7. Latitude II (Developer: Peter Zak, Lyon/NCA) – This project is a 112-unit multi-family 
development, located at the northeastern corner of Centre City Parkway and Washington 
Avenue, and approved by the City Council on August 19, 2015. A Final Subdivision Map has 
been submitted for review and is awaiting approval of a boundary adjustment for a property 
exchange with the adjacent motel owner. The Final Map is scheduled for City Council 
approval on January 25, 2017. Grading and building plans are nearing approval.   

 
8. Canyon Grove Estates Tract 932 (Developer: John Vance, Shea Homes) – No change from 

the following update reported last week:  This project is a 179-lot single family residential 
development on the north side of Vista Avenue east of Conway Drive. The final architectural 
design and landscaping plans for the Precise Plan application were approved by the 
Planning Commission on June 14, 2016. A rough grading permit has been issued and 
grading is underway. The Final Map has been approved by the City Council. Precise 
grading plans for the model complex and a model home permit have been approved. 
Building plans for the construction of eight model homes have been issued and construction 
is underway. Building permits for 16 additional homes are nearly ready to issue and the 
remainder of the homes are now in for building plan check.  The applicant is coordinating the 
plan review for off-site street improvements on Ash Street with the County’s Department of 
Public Works. 
 

9. Safari Highlands Ranch (SHR) (Developer: Jeb Hall, Concordia Homes) – No change from 
the following update reported last week:  This project is a 550-unit single family development 



 

 8 

located east of the Rancho San Pasqual community and north of the San Diego Safari Park. 
The project involves 1,100 acres including annexation and a Sphere of Influence update for a 
master planned community with parks, trails, recreation center, fire station and open space. 
Planning and Engineering extensions of staff have been funded by the applicant and retained 
to assist the City in processing the project. The City Council approved the consultant contract 
for preparing the EIR on March 23, 2016. The contract planner has been meeting with the 
consultant, Michael Baker International (MBI), and has started review of first draft sections 
of the EIR. While the EIR is generally on schedule, there have been some changes to the 
site plan, which will affect the EIR schedule. The changes include the elimination of the 
“water factory” for wastewater treatment, elimination of the public park, changes to the 
entry road which would now be private instead of public, and relocation of the fire station to 
the former public park site. These changes will require the applicant’s civil engineer to 
make a number of revisions to the tentative map, but are not anticipated to affect the 
proposed development envelope or the number of proposed lots. A revised tentative map 
depicting the site plan changes was submitted on October 17, 2016, and is being reviewed 
by staff and the contract planner. 
 

10. High Pointe Tract 693-J (Developer: Russell Schaeffer, True Life Communities) – No change 
from the following update reported last week: This project is a custom-home development 
with 39 estate lots accessed from Mesa Rock Road. Staff has prepared a bond and fee letter 
based on the proposed grading and landscape plans, and has sent it to the applicant. 

 
11. Del Prado (Developer: Kerry Garza, Touchstone Communities) – No change from the 

following update reported last week:  This project is a 113-unit townhome-style Planned 
Development located at the southwestern corner of Brotherton Road and the Centre City 
Parkway frontage road. The project includes a recreational facility, pool, and open space 
areas.  Staff worked through various site design and utility issues with the applicant prior to 
scheduling the project for a public hearing. The City Council approved the project on May 11, 
2016. No grading or improvement plans have been submitted by the developer at this time. 

 
12. 701 San Pasqual Valley Rd (Developer: Bob Stewart) – No change from the following update 

reported last week:  This project is a 19-unit single family development located at 701 San 
Pasqual Rd/1201 E. 5th Avenue (formerly Tract 898) on 7.2 acres. The application is under 
review and a letter detailing additional comments and submittal requirements was forwarded 
to the applicant. Additional information and revised plans were submitted to the Planning 
Division on June 13, 2016. Planning Division has reviewed the submittal and informed the 
applicant that it is still incomplete. 

 
13. Veterans Village (Developer: Veterans Village of San Diego) – No change from the following 

update reported last week:  This project is a mixed-use development involving a 54-unit 
affordable multi-family residential apartment project for military veterans and their families. It 
includes on-site administration office, business center, club house and other support spaces 
for the residents; and a small commercial component to support training opportunities offered 
at the facility at 1556 S. Escondido Boulevard. Building plans have been submitted for review 



 

 9 

and comment; the grading plans and landscaping plans have been approved. Demolition has 
been completed. 

 
14. Escondido Gateway (Developer: Greg Waite, Integral Communities) – No change from the 

following update reported last week:  This project is a mixed-use development involving 126 
residential units within three, 4-5 story buildings with indoor and outdoor recreational areas 
and an opportunity for a small (1,000 sq. ft.) commercial/flex space on 2.6 acres (48 dwelling 
units/acre) located at 700 W. Grand Avenue (former Police Station) across the street from 
the Escondido Transit Center. Plans were submitted for the project involving a Specific Plan 
Amendment, Tentative Map, Planned Development and Development Agreement. The City 
Council approved the project on October 12, 2016. Grading plans and a final map were 
submitted on November 17and November 21, 2016, and are currently being reviewed by 
staff. The Development Agreement has recorded.  Building plans were submitted into plan 
check the week of December 11, 2016. 

 
15. The Villages at Escondido Country Club (Developer: Jason Han, New Urban West, Inc.) – 

The project would redevelop the former 109.3-acre Escondido Country Club golf course 
property with a new residential development consisting of 392 dwelling units including single-
family detached and attached duplex units. The proposed project density is 3.6 dwelling units 
per acre with a minimum residential lot size of 2,555 square feet. The development would 
include 46 acres of open space including a landscaped greenbelt with a four-mile trail system 
linking park features. Other proposed amenities include a new clubhouse building, swimming 
pool, gym, tennis/pickle ball court, restaurant and bar and banquet facilities. The proposed 
General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan, Vesting Tentative Map and Zone Change 
applications and plans were submitted to the Planning Division on October 31, 2016. The 
plans are now being routed to City departments and agencies for comments. The developer 
has retained Dudek to prepare the Draft EIR for the project. The developer will fund a 
contract planner working under the direction of the Planning Division to assist the City in 
processing the project. A kick-off meeting was held on November 15, 2016, to commence 
project-related discussions between Planning staff and their contract planner, the applicant 
and the EIR consultant. A letter indicating the project application is incomplete was sent to 
the applicant on November 30, 2016.  City staff met with the applicant on December 22nd to 
review the comment letter.  It was conveyed to City staff that the applicant will resubmit in 
early 2017. 

 
Building Division 
 
1. The Building Division issued 39 permits for the week with a total valuation of $6,375,044. 

This includes seven new single family dwellings for KB Homes in the Ash Street/Vista 
Avenue neighborhood as well as the Springhill Suites (Marriott) hotel project located at 200 
La Terraza Blvd. 

 
2. Six photovoltaic permits were issued for the week, 107 for the month of December and 

1,330 for the year.  This represents a 9% decrease compared to the 1,450 PV permits 



 

 10 

issued in 2015. Overall, in 2016, the Building department processed 3,953 permit 
applications. 

 
3. Counter technicians assisted, on average, 25 customers per day during the week between 

holidays; with 19 customers on Friday. 
 
4. Building inspections averaged 27 inspections per day with 27 inspections on Friday. 
 
5. The Building Division is now implementing the 2016 California Building Code, which came 

into effect on January 1, 2017. Staff will continue to attend available training on the new 
codes.  

 
6. There are currently 33 projects awaiting plan check, for both new and re-check submittals.  

All phases of Shea Homes Estates and Heritage at Canyon Grove (178 single-family 
residences) have been submitted and are currently awaiting processing.  

 
7. The City Plaza podium deck is complete and framing operations have now commenced. 
 
8. Shea Homes’s eight model homes have had roof sheathing inspections completed. 
 
9. Our new Senior Building Inspector has helped reduce timeframes by assisting both in the 

field and with plan checking. 
 
Code Enforcement 
 
1. As of January 2, 2017, the total number of open code enforcement cases is 655 cases. 

During the prior week, 156 new cases were opened, and 28 cases were closed, with a 
backlog of an additional 19 cases not yet opened for assignment and investigation.  
 

2. No illegal signs were confiscated during the holiday weekend. 
 

3. Last week, the Business License Division issued 21 new licenses and received 22 new 
applications, in addition to 209 renewals. Nineteen businesses closed and/or closed out their 
business licenses. 

 
ENGINEERING 
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
2015/2016 Street Rehabilitation and Maintenance Project 
The striping contractor is finishing the roadway striping on Washington Avenue between 
Centre City Parkway and Spruce Street, Centre City Parkway between 13th Avenue and 
Felicita Avenue and Valley Parkway between Harding Street and Midway Drive this week. Stop 
legends and Stop bars are continuing to be installed within the Escondido west side 
communities as part of last year’s program.     



 

 11 

 
PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 
Pradera - Lennar Communities 
Installation and testing of the sewer manhole lining is starting this week. 
  
Lexington Model Homes - KB Homes 
The installation of the storm drain system along Ash Street between Lehner Avenue and Vista 
Avenue is proceeding this week. Work is being coordinated with the Tract 932 contractor in the 
Ash Street / Vista Street intersection to maximize the installation of all utilities during the 
school’s winter break. 

 
Escondido Boulevard at 3rd Avenue 
No changes from the following reported last week. The contractor completed a second 
concrete pour on the second floor slab.  
 
Tract 932 - Canyon Grove Shea Homes Community 
The contractor is continuing the mass grading for the 179 housing units, the importing of 
material will continue once the site dries out later this week. The Ash Street/Vista Avenue 
improvements are continuing this week with the closing of the intersection for two weeks for 
the purposes of lower the elevation of the intersection as wells as the construction of the 
remaining utility crossing. Work on the new traffic signal installation at the Ash Street/Sheridan 
Avenue intersection is ongoing with the installation of conduit runs along Ash Street between 
Madison Avenue and Hubbard Avenue.  
 
Solutions Housing Project 1560 S. Escondido Boulevard 
No changes from the following reported last week: The contractor has completed the 
backfilling of utility trenches along the frontage of the project. 
 
Latitude II Condominiums by a Lyon Homes Partnership: Washington Avenue at Centre 
City Parkway 
The contractor is working in Washington Avenue to reinstall a test plate on the failed water 
line. The retesting of the failed potable water main onto the site will take approximately three 
weeks to complete. Once water quality testing is done, the mass grading will once again 
commence.     
 
Westminster Theological Seminary Graduate Student Housing: Boyle Avenue at Bear 
Valley Parkway 
The grading contractor has respraying all slopes as well as distributing water from the drainage 
basin to create more capacity in anticipation of the approaching storm later this week. The 
installation of the onsite private sewer system will resume this week.  
 
Veterans Village 1556 S. Escondido Boulevard 
No changes from the following reported last week: The demolition of the existing structures is 
complete with the contractor importing material for grading. 



 

 12 

 
Talk of the Town 
No changes from the following reported last week: A site meeting was held to discuss the limits 
of surface restoration along Bernardo Avenue 
 
Tract 877 – Bernardo Ave. by Ambient Communities 
The project is a 13 lot single family residential project located at the cul-de-sac end of 
Bernardo Ave. The Grading Permit has been activated, with the relocation of the emergency 
access gates along 11th Avenue. The grading operation will resume next week after the 
contractors completed implementing erosion control measures this past week in advance of 
the weekend rain event. 
 
FUTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
East Valley Pkwy/Valley Center Road Widening Project 
On 9/21/16 the City received approval on the requested Authorization to Construct for this 
project.  Staff will submit signed agreements to Caltrans for the Authorization to Construct this 
week.  The last environmental permit has been acquired.  Staff continues working with Utilities 
to finalize their plans prior to bidding this project.  
   
Jim Stone Pool 
This project will renovate both existing pools and update pool equipment in need of 
replacement.  The City received two bids at the opening on December 22 that were much 
higher than available funding.  Staff is preparing a staff report for the January 11 City Council 
meeting, recommending Council reject all bids, and the project be re-scoped and advertised. 
 
POLICE 
 
INCIDENTS 

 On 12/25/16 at approximately 05:34 hours, units were dispatched to an alarm at the Chick-
fil-A.  The units located a smashed glass door. It was later determined that three unknown 
suspects entered the building and forced entry into a safe in the back room. The suspects 
stole over $10,000 in cash. There is security video, however the suspects all had their faces 
covered. 

 On 12/25/16 at about 15:59 hours, officers were dispatched to Washington Park to 
investigate a possible stabbing. Officer Brett Byler arrived on scene and located the victim, 
who had a stab wound behind his left ear, and about four to five stab wounds to the front 
and back of his upper right torso and shoulder. The victim was transported to PMC and is in 
stable condition. The victim states he was involved in a fight with three males who 
approached him and stated, “This is Escondido” and they claimed membership in the 
‘Diablos’ criminal street gang. Two of the suspects were described as 25-year-old Hispanic 
males. The third suspect was described as a 25-year-old white male, light colored hair, thin 
build, about 5’10” tall, and 140 lbs. The white male is the stabber. All suspects fled the 
scene prior to police arriving on scene. There is no further information at this point. 



 

 13 

 On 12/26/16 at about 19:50 hours officers were dispatched to 501 N. Rose St, Washington 
Park, to investigate an assault. A 16-year-old victim was struck on the head with a metal 
flashlight, causing about a 2” laceration to the top of his head. The suspect was his mother’s 
boyfriend of about a month. The crime occurred during an argument at 1480 Taylor Ave.  
The juvenile was treated for his injury at PMC, and the suspect was not located. 

 On 12/26/16 at about 23:57 hours, Officers were dispatched to the apartments at 1051 W. El 
Norte Pkwy to investigate an armed robbery. The victim was walking to her apartment when 
two males ran up to her and demanded her purse. One of the subjects was holding a black 
semi-automatic pistol. The male with the pistol was described as a black male or Hispanic 
male, early 20’s, 5’4” to 5’7”, covering his face with a shirt, wearing a dark hooded 
sweatshirt, and black pants. The second suspect was described black male or Hispanic 
male, in his early 20’s, and was wearing all black.  Males matching the description were 
seen at the ‘AM PM’ at 450 W. El Norte Pkwy between 22:00 and 23:30 hours.  

 On 12/28/16 at approximately 09:43 hours, a warrant subject was located inside a parked 
vehicle at the church at Ash and El Norte.  Sgt. Sinnott and his partner assisted the Gang 
Unit by making contact and subsequently taking him into custody without incident.  A 
loaded/stolen Colt .45 handgun was recovered from under the front seat of the vehicle.  

 On 12/30/16 at about 19:46 hours, officers responded to 1651 S. Juniper St #3 to 
investigate an assault with a deadly weapon. Officers contacted the victim who had a 
laceration to the top of his head.  After an investigation it was determined that, during an 
argument, the suspect threw a glass lid, a glass salt shaker, and a large glass bowl at the 
victim. The victim was able to evade the first two objects, but was struck by the bowl. The 
victim was treated by EFD Paramedics, but declined transport to PMC. The suspect was 
arrested for the violation. 

 
EVENTS 
 
None due to the Christmas and New Year holidays.   

 
FIRE 
 
INDICENTS 
 

On 12/29/16 at 12:36 a.m. the Escondido Fire and Police Departments responded to a 
reported residential structure fire with reports of victims trapped inside at the Green Crest 
Mobile Home Park located at 541 W. 15th Avenue in Escondido. Upon arrival, firefighters and 
police officers found heavy fire and black smoke coming from the front doors and windows. 
Family members on scene confirmed that there were two children still trapped inside the 
mobile home. Firefighters took immediate fire suppression and rescue actions and requested 
second alarm, an air ambulance, and additional ground ambulances. Two firefighters made 
entry to the rear of the structure where they quickly located a male child. The child was 
removed from the structure and firefighter paramedics and police officers waiting outside 
provided medical care. The child was transported to Palomar Hospital and was later 
transferred to UCSD Medical Center by air ambulance, but later succumed to his injuries at the 



 

 14 

hospital. A total of eight residents were transported to local hospitals with injuries ranging from 
mild smoke inhalation to acute status CPR. After the fire was controlled, firefighters found a 
deceased female child inside the mobile home. The fire was contained to the mobile home by 
a total of 42 firefighters including seven Fire Engines, three Truck Companies, six Ambulances 
and four Chief Officers. Escondido Fire Department was assisted by San Marcos Fire, Vista 
Fire and Mercy Air. The Red Cross was requested to provide assistance to the residents. The 
cause of the fire is still under investigation. However, it is possible that the fire was caused by 
an electrical failure or a candle. No smoke detectors were found in the mobile home and there 
were no reports of a smoke alarm sounding.  

 
 

### 


	Consent Calendar
	Item #3
	Item #4
	Item #5
	Item #6
	Item #7
	Public Hearings
	Item #8
	Item #9
	Current Business
	Item #10
	Item #11
	Future Agenda
	Item #12
	City Manager's Update/Briefing
	City Manager's Update

